
Dinas a Sir Abertawe 
 
Hysbysiad o Gyfarfod 
 

 
Fe'ch gwahoddir i gyfarfod 

 

Is-bwyllgor trwyddedu statudol 
 
Lleoliad: 
 

Cyfarfod Aml-Leoliad  - Ystafell Gloucester, Neuadd y Ddinas / MS 
Teams 
 

Dyddiad: 
 

Dydd Mercher, 27 Mawrth 2024 

Amser: 
 

10.00 am 

Cadeirydd: Y Cynghorydd  Penny Matthews 
 

 

Aelodaeth: 
Cynghorwyr: J P Curtice a/ac C L Philpott 
 
Gwylio ar-lein:  http://tiny.cc/SLS27m 
 
 

 
Agenda 

Rhif y Dudalen.  
1   Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.  
  
2   Datgeliadau o fuddiannau personol a rhagfarnol.  

 www.abertawe.gov.uk/DatgeluCysylltiadau 
  

 

  
3   Gweithdrefn yr Is-bwyllgor Trwyddedu Statudol. 1 - 2 
  
4   Deddf Trwyddedu 2003 - Adran 17 - Cais am Drwydded Mangre - 

Main Stage, 36, Castle Street, Swansea, SA1 1HZ. 
3 - 57 

 
 
 

 
 
Huw Evans 
Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Dydd Mercher, 20 Mawrth 2024 
Cyswllt: Democratic Sevices - Tel: (01792) 636923 
 
 

http://tiny.cc/SLS27m
http://www.abertawe.gov.uk/DatgeluCysylltiadau


 

 
 
 

 Statutory Licensing Sub Committee Procedure/Running Order  
 
The procedure to be followed by the Committee is as follows:- 
 
1. The Chair will: 
 

• Open the meeting. 
• Introduce themselves, Members of the Committee, Officers present and ask 

the other parties to introduce themselves. 
• Explain the nature of the decision to be taken. 
• Ask the Lawyer advising the Committee to outline the procedure to be 

followed. 
 

2. Members will be asked to make any declaration of interest. 
 
3. The Chair will ask the Licensing Officer to present the report 
 
4. Members of the Committee will be invited to ask any relevant questions of the 

Licensing Officer. 
 
5. Responsible Authorities and other persons present will be invited to ask for any 

clarification in respect of the report presented. 
 
Representations – Responsible Authorities 
 
6. The Chair will invite each responsible authority to fully outline the nature of their 

representation in the following order: 
 

• South Wales Police. 
• Trading Standards. 
• Mid and West Wales Fire Authority. 
• Health and Safety. 
• Planning Authority. 
• Pollution Division. 
• Child Protection. 
• Primary Care trust/Local Health Board. 
• Licensing Authority. 
• Immigration. 
• Other Persons. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



7.  The Chair will invite Members of the Committee to ask questions of each 
responsible authority. 

 
8. The Chair will invite the applicant and other persons present to ask questions of 

each responsible authority. 
 
Representations – Other Persons 
 
9. The Chair will invite each of the other persons present (or their appointed 

spokesperson where there are a number of other persons and the nature of the 
representations are similar), to fully outline their representation. 

 
10.  The Chair will invite Members of the Committee to ask any relevant questions of 

the other persons. 
 
11. The Chair will invite the responsible authorities and applicant to ask questions of 

the other persons. 
 
The Application 
  
12. The Chair will invite the applicant and/or the person representing them to fully 

outline their application.  
 
13. The Chair will invite Members of the Committee to ask questions of the 

applicant. 
 
14. The Chair will invite each responsible authority and other persons present to 

ask questions of the applicant. 
 
Closing Submissions  
 
15. The Chair will give all parties the opportunity to briefly summarise their key 

points and make any final points of clarification.  The order will be:- 
 

• responsible authorities; 
• interested parties.; 
• applicant. 

 
16. Members will consider if they need to go into private session to receive legal 

advice and to debate the application. 
 
17. The decision will generally be given, with reasons, together with a summary of the 

legal advice provided within 5 working days of this date. 
 
 
 

Page 2



 
 

Report of the Service Manager  
Statutory Licensing Sub Committee 

27 March 2024 
 

Licensing Act 2003 
Section 17 Application for a Premises Licence 

 
1. Premises: Main Stage, 36 Castle Street, Swansea, SA1 1HZ 
 
2. Applicant: Main Stage Swansea Ltd. 
 
3. Application For a New Premises Licence 

 
3.1      An application for a new premises licence was received by this authority on 

the 9th February 2024. The applicant has applied for a premises licence to 
allow the following licensable activities to take place: 

            
          The application proposes: 
 

Films 
Monday to Sunday            1000-0100 

 
Live Music 
Monday to Sunday            1000-0100 

 
Recorded Music 
Monday to Sunday            1000-0100 (Applicant reduced hours previously 

requested 0130) 
 

Provision of late-night refreshment  
Monday to Sunday            2300-0100 

 
Supply of Alcohol (Both) 
Monday to Sunday           1000-0100 

           
A copy of the application and plan is attached at Appendix A and A1.  
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



     Licensing Sub Committee Main Stage    27th March 2024 
 

 
 

4. Background 
 

4.1 The property is situated in Swansea city centre.  The area is a mix of 
commercial and residential properties. The premises will be used to operate a 
cabaret bar by night and during the day it will be run as a coffee shop and a 
place to meet for the LGBTQ+ community.  

 
4.2 A location plan is attached at Appendix B.  
 
4.3 A list of licensed premises in the area is attached at Appendix B1. 
 
 
5.        Promotion of the Licensing Objectives 
 
5.1 The Licensing Act 2003 contains four licensing objectives, namely: - 
 
 

(i) Prevention of Crime and Disorder. 
   (ii) Public Safety. 
          (iii)   Prevention of Public Nuisance. 
          (iv)   Protection of Children from Harm. 
 
 Each of these objectives is of equal importance and the application must 

demonstrate how they are to be promoted.  
 
5.2 As Members will be aware, the Council re-adopted a special policy on cumulative 

impact (CIA) in July 2023 and the premises subject to this application is situated 
within this area.  The following relevant paragraphs are extracts from the full 
policy and state: 

 
“5.7 
The publication of the CIA does not change the fundamental way that decisions 
are made under the Licensing Act 2003. The Licensing Authority will make all 
decisions on applications within the cumulative impact area on a case-by-case 
basis and with a view to what is appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.”  

 
“5.8  
The CIA does not remove the need for a relevant representation to be submitted 
by a responsible authority or ‘other persons’ in response to an application, where 
they consider it appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and for 
the application to be determined by the Licensing Sub- Committee. Anyone 
making a representation may base it on the evidence published in the CIA.” 

          
5.3 Conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule and will be attached 

to the licence, if granted, are attached at Appendix C.  
 
 
 
 

Page 4



     Licensing Sub Committee Main Stage    27th March 2024 
 

 
6.     RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS. 
 
6.1    Responsible Authorities          
 
a) South Wales Police  

No Representation. 
 

b) Trading Standards 
No representations. 
 

c) Mid and West Wales Fire Authority  
No representations. 
 

d) Health and Safety 
No representations. 

 
e) Planning Authority  

No representations. 
 
f) Pollution Division 

A representation was received from the Pollution Division, however, following a 
meeting with the applicant on 14th March 2024, the Pollution Division has 
withdrawn their representation. 

 
g) Child Protection 

No representations. 
 
h) Primary Care Trust/Local Health Board 

No representations. 
 

i) Licensing Authority  
j) A representation has been received from the Licensing Authority. The 

representation is attached at Appendix D. 
 

j)      Immigration 
        No representations. 
 
k) Other Persons 

A representation was received from one other person, however, following a 
meeting with the applicant on 14th March 2024, the other person has withdrawn 
their representation. 

               
 
7.     Policy Considerations 

7.1 Considering this application, Members should have regard to the current               
Statement of Licensing Policy (the Policy) and the full copy of the Cumulative 
Impact Assessment (CIA) which may be accessed using the following link.  

 Statement of licensing policy - Swansea 

Page 5

https://www.swansea.gov.uk/statementoflicensingpolicy


     Licensing Sub Committee Main Stage    27th March 2024 
 

 
 
7.2 Members will note that the premises licence application under consideration 

does not fall within the exemptions listed in the Cumulative Impact 
Assessment as stated at paragraph 5.3 of the policy and therefore must 
demonstrate that their application and proposed operation would not add to 
the cumulative impact: 
 
“5.3  
…it is recognised that pubs, nightclubs, restaurants, hotels, theatres, and 
other types of premises sell alcohol, serve food, and provide entertainment 
but with different styles and characteristics and due to the nature of the 
premises, would not add to existing cumulative impact. Having regard to those 
differences and the impact they are likely to have on the local area, the 
following types of premises, providing certain licensable activities between the 
hours of 10.00am and 1.00am, are exempt from the provisions of the CIA:  
 
• Non – alcohol led premises.  
• Theatres, where the main purpose of the premises is the performance of   
plays.  

• Cinemas, where the main purpose of the premises is the exhibition of films.  
• Premises where the main purpose is the provision of substantial table meals; 
• Premises where the sale/supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service 

only.” 
 
8. Guidance Issued by the Home Secretary 
 
8.1  Members should also have regard to the relevant parts of the current statutory 

guidance (The Guidance), issued by the Home Secretary in January 2024 in 
particular: 

 
(i) Introduction – Chapter 1 
(ii) Licensing Objectives – Chapter 2  
(iii) Applications For Premises Licences – Chapter 8 
(iv) Determining Applications – Chapter 9 
(v) Conditions attached to Premises Licences – Chapter 10 
(vi)    Statement of Licensing Policy – Chapter 14  
(vii)    Regulated Entertainment – Chapter 16 
 
 
A link to the full Guidance can be found at:  

  
Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
(publishing.service.gov.uk) 
 

8.2    The following extract from the Home Office Guidance refers to limitations on    
         special policies relating to cumulative impact. 
 

14.44  
A CIA should never be absolute. Statements of licensing policy should always 
allow for the circumstances of each application to be considered properly and for 

Page 6

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/65a8f578ed27ca000d27b1f9/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003_-_December_2023.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/65a8f578ed27ca000d27b1f9/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003_-_December_2023.pdf


     Licensing Sub Committee Main Stage    27th March 2024 
 

 
applications that are unlikely to add to the cumulative impact on the licensing 
objectives to be granted. After receiving relevant representations in relation to a 
new application for or a variation of a licence or certificate, the licensing authority 
must consider whether it would be justified in departing from its CIA in the light 
of the individual circumstances of the case. The impact can be expected to be 
different for premises with different styles and characteristics. For example, while 
a large nightclub or high-capacity public house might add to problems of 
cumulative impact, a small restaurant or a theatre may not. If the licensing 
authority decides that an application should be refused, it will still need to show 
that the grant of the application would undermine the promotion of one or more 
of the licensing objectives and that appropriate conditions would be ineffective in 
preventing the problems involved.” 
 

9. Determination of the Application 
 
9.1 The decision must be based on the individual merits of the application and the 

representations received, with a view to promoting the licensing objectives 
outlined in paragraph 5 of the report.  

 
9.2 In arriving at the decision, Members should also have regard to the relevant 

provisions of the Policies and the Guidance as previously provided.  Reasons 
must be provided for any departures from the Policies or Guidance. 

 
9.3  In reaching the decision the Committee must, having regard to the 

representations, take such steps mentioned below (if any) as it considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives: - 

 
a. Grant the licence subject to: 

 
i) conditions that reflect the operating schedule, modified to such extent 
as the authority considers appropriate for promotion of the licensing 
objectives. Certain regulated entertainment under the Licensing Act 
2003 (as amended), has been deregulated. Where entertainment is 
deregulated but licensable activities continue to take place on any 
premises, any licence conditions imposed on a grant of a licence in 
respect of any deregulated entertainment will be suspended; and 
 
ii) any mandatory conditions relevant to the licence 
   

b. Exclude any of the licensable activities to which the application relates. 
 

c. Refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor.  
 

d. Reject the application.  
 

The Licensing Sub Committee’s instructions are requested. 
 
Background Papers:            Licence Application    
Contact Officer:  Lindsey Stock 
Extension:   01792 635600 

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Appendix A1

P
age 38



Appendix B 

 

2 

 
 
 

 

1 

4 

5 

3 

2 

6 

8 

9 

10 

1. Mainstage  
2. Bella Ciao 
3. Cattle & Co 
4. Cinema & Co  
5. Copr  
6. Nines 
7. Raj Kitchen  
8. Turtle Bay 
9. Las Iguanas  
10. Slug & Lettuce  

1 

7 

11

11. Level 256

Page 39



Appendix B1 
Licensed Premises in the area 

 
 

2. Bella Ciao, 37 Castle Street Swansea  (not yet operational – not currently trading) 
 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
 
Supply of Alcohol 
 

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
 
Supply of Alcohol 
Sunday - Thursday - 1130 - 2230 
Friday - Saturday - 1130 - 2330 
 
 
The opening hours of the premises 
 
Sunday - Thursday - 1130 - 2300 
Friday - Saturday - 1130 - 0000 
 

 
3. Cattle & Co, 2 Castle Gardens, Temple Street, Swansea  (currently not trading) 
 

Licensable activities authorised by  the licence 
 
Performance of Plays 
Exhibition of Films 
Performance of Live Music 
Playback of Recorded Music 
Late Night Refreshment 
Supply of Alcohol 
 

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
 
Performance of Plays 
Sunday to Thursday 08.00-01.00 hours 
Friday & Saturday 08.00-02.00 hours 
Until 03.00 hours on Friday/Saturday/Sunday preceding all bank 
holidays, Christmas Eve, Boxing Day & New Year's Eve 
 
 
Exhibition of Films 
Sunday to Thursday 08.00-01.00 hours 
Friday & Saturday 08.00-02.00 hours 
Until 03.00 hours on Friday/Saturday/Sunday preceding all bank 
holidays, Christmas Eve, Boxing Day & New Year's Eve 
 
 
Performance of Live Music 
Sunday to Thursday Midday-00.00 hours 
Friday & Saturday Midday-01.00 hours Page 40



Until 03.00 hours on Friday/Saturday/Sunday preceding all bank 
holidays, Christmas Eve, Boxing Day & New Year's Eve 
 
 
Playback of Recorded Music 
Sunday to Thursday 08.00-01.00 hours 
Friday & Saturday 08.00-02.00 hours 
Until 03.00 hours on Friday/Saturday/Sunday preceding all bank 
holidays, Christmas Eve, Boxing Day & New Year's Eve 
 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
Sunday to Thursday 23.00-01.00 hours 
Friday & Saturday 23.00-0.200 hours 
Until 03.00 hours on Friday/Saturday/Sunday preceding all bank 
holidays, Christmas Eve, Boxing Day & New Year's Eve 
 
 
Supply of Alcohol 
Sunday to Thursday 10.00-01.00 hours 
Friday & Saturday 10.00-02.00 hours 
Until 02.30 hours on Friday/Saturday/Sunday preceding all bank 
holidays, Christmas Eve, Boxing Day & New Year's Eve 
 
 
The opening hours of the premises 
 
Sunday to Thursday 08.00-01.30 hours 
Friday & Saturday 08.00-02.30 hours 
Until 03.00 hours on Friday/Saturday/Sunday preceding all bank 
holidays, Christmas Eve, Boxing Day & New Year's Eve 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 41



4. Cinema & Co, 17 Castle Street, Swansea  
 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
 
Exhibition of Films 
Late Night Refreshment 
Supply of Alcohol 

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
 
Exhibition of Films 
Monday - Sunday 10.00 - 00.00 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
Monday - Sunday 23.00 - 00.00 
 
Supply of Alcohol 
Monday - Friday 18.00 - 23.30 
Saturday & Sunday 12.00 - 23.30 
 
The opening hours of the premises 
 
Monday - Sunday 09.00 - 00.00 

 
5. Copr Bar, 38-39 Castle Street, City Centre, Swansea 

Licensable activities authorised by  the licence 
 
Performance of Live Music 
Playback of Recorded Music 
Prov Facility like music/dance 
Late Night Refreshment 
Supply of Alcohol 
 

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
 
Performance of Live Music 
Monday - Sunday 12.00 - 23.59 
 
Playback of Recorded Music 
Monday - Sunday 08.00 - 23.59 
 
Prov Facility like music/dance 
Monday - Sunday 19.00 - 23.59 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
Monday - Sunday 23.00 - 23.59 
 
Supply of Alcohol 
Monday - Sunday 09.00 - 23.30 
 
The opening hours of the premises 
 
Monday - Sunday 08.00 - 23.59 
 

Page 42



 
6. Nines Global Buffet, 15-16 Castle Street. 
 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
 
Supply of Alcohol 
 

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable 
activities 
 
Supply of Alcohol 
Monday to Saturday 1200 hours to 2300 hours 
Sunday 1200 hours to 2230 hours 
 
When New Years Day or Christmas Day falls on a Sunday then the hours 
shall be identical to the weekday hours of between 1200 hours and 2300 
hours. 
 
 
The opening hours of the premises 
 
Monday to Saturday 1200 hours to 0000 hours 
Sunday 1200 hours to 2300 hours 
 
When New Years Day or Christmas Day falls on a Sunday then the hours 
shall be identical to the weekday hours of between 1200 hours and 0000 
hours. 

 
 

Page 43



7. Raj Kitchen, 40-41 Castle Street, City Centre, Swansea  
 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
 
Playback of Recorded Music 
Late Night Refreshment 
Supply of Alcohol 
 

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
 
Playback of Recorded Music 
Monday to Sunday: 24 hours a day 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
Monday to Saturday: 1000 hours to 0030 hours 
Sunday: 1200 hours to 0000 hours 
 
 
Supply of Alcohol 
Monday to Saturday: 1000 hours to 0000 hours 
Sunday: 1200 hours to 2330 hours 
 
 
 
The opening hours of the premises 
 
Monday to Saturday: 1000 hours to 0030 hours 
Sunday: 1200 hours to 0000 hours 
 

 
  

Page 44



8. Turtle Bay, 10-14 Castle Street, City Centre, Swansea 
 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
 
Playback of Recorded Music 
Late Night Refreshment 
Supply of Alcohol 
 

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
 
Playback of Recorded Music 
Indoors only 
Sunday - Wednesday - 10.00 - 00.00 
Thursday  - 10.00 - 01.00 
Friday & Saturday - 10.00 - 02.00 
 
New Year's Eve - From the start of permitted hours New Year's Eve to the end of 
permitted hours New Year's Day. 
On the day that British Summertime commences, one additional hour to disapply 
its effect. 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
Indoors only 
Sunday - Wednesday - 23.00 - 00.30 
Thursday - 23.00 - 01.30 
Friday & Saturday - 23.00 - 02.30 
New Year's Eve - From the start of permitted hours New Year's Eve tot he end of 
permitted hours New Year's Day. 
On the day that British Summertime commences, one additional hour to 
disapply its effect. 
 
Supply of Alcohol 
On & off Sales 
Sunday - Wednesday - 10.00 - 00.00 
Thursday - 10.00 - 01.00 
Friday & Saturday - 10.00 - 02.00 
 
New Year's Eve - From the start of permitted hours New Year's Eve to the end of 
permitted hours New Year's Day. 
On the day that British Summertime commences, one additional hour to 
disapply its effect. 
 
 
The opening hours of the premises 
 
Indoors only 
Sunday - Thursday - 10.00 - 00.30 
Thursday - 10.00 - 01.30 
Friday & Saturday - 10.00 - 02.30 
 
New Year's Eve - From the start of permitted hours New Year's Eve to the end of 
permitted hours New Year's Day. 
On the day that British Summertime commences, one additional hour to 
disapply its effect. 

Page 45



9. Las Iguanas, Castle Quarter 1-4 Castle Square Swansea 
 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
 
Performance of Live Music 
Playback of Recorded Music 
Late Night Refreshment 
Supply of Alcohol 
 

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
 
Performance of Live Music 
Extend the finish time until 01:00hrs the morning following New Years 
Eve and every Bank Holiday Sunday 
 
 
Playback of Recorded Music 
Indoors only 
Monday to Thursday 19:00hrs to 22:00hrs 
Friday & Saturday 19:00hrs to 00:00hrs 
Sunday 14:00hrs to 22:00hrs 
 
Extend the finishing time until 01:00hrs the morning following New 
Years Eve and every Bank Holiday Sunday 
 
 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
Sunday to Thursday 23:00hrs to 00:30hrs 
Friday and Saturday 23:00hrs to 01:30hrs 
 
Extend the finish time until 01:30hrs the morning following New Years 
Eve and every Bank Holiday Sunday 
 
 
Supply of Alcohol 
Sunday to Thursday 09:00hrs to 00:00hrs 
Friday and Saturday 09:00hrs to 01:00hrs 
 
Extend the finish time until 01:00hrs the morning following New Years 
Eve and every Bank Holiday Sunday 
 
 
The opening hours of the premises 
 
Sunday to Thursday 09:00hrs to 00:30hrs 
Friday and Saturday 09:00hrs to 01:30hrs 
Extend the finish time until 01:30hrs the morning after New Years Eve 
and every Bank Holiday Sunday. 
 
 

 
 
  

Page 46



10. Slug & Lettuce, 1-4 Caer Street, Swansea 
 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
 
Exhibition of Films 
Performance of Live Music 
Playback of Recorded Music 
Activity like Music/Dance 
Late Night Refreshment 
Supply of Alcohol 
 

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
 
Exhibition of Films 
Monday to Sunday 0700 hours to 0230 hours 
 
An additional hour to the terminal hour on the following notable days 
– 
St George’s Day, St David’s Day, St Patrick’s Day, St Andrew’s Day, 
Burns Night, Valentine’s Night, Halloween, all bank holidays, Maundy 
Thursday, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, Boxing Day, 27th 28th 29th 
30th December, Bonfire Night and New Year’s Day. 
An additional hour to the standard and non-standard timings on the day 
when British Summer Time commences. 
New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 
 
 
Performance of Live Music 
Monday to Sunday 0900 hours to 0230 hours 
 
An additional hour to the terminal hour on the following notable days 
– 
St George’s Day, St David’s Day, St Patrick’s Day, St Andrew’s Day, 
Burns Night, Valentine’s Night, Halloween, all bank holidays, Maundy 
Thursday, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, Boxing Day, 27th 28th 29th 
30th December, Bonfire Night and New Year’s Day. 
An additional hour to the standard and non-standard timings on the day 
when British Summer Time commences. 
New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 
 
 
Playback of Recorded Music 
Monday to Sunday 0900 hours to 0230 hours 
 
An additional hour to the terminal hour on the following notable days 
– 
St George’s Day, St David’s Day, St Patrick’s Day, St Andrew’s Day, 
Burns Night, Valentine’s Night, Halloween, all bank holidays, Maundy 
Thursday, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, Boxing Day, 27th 28th 29th 
30th December, Bonfire Night and New Year’s Day. 
An additional hour to the standard and non-standard timings on the day 
when British Summer Time commences. 

Page 47



New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 
 
 
Activity like Music/Dance 
Monday to Sunday 0900 hours to 0230 hours 
 
An additional hour to the terminal hour on the following notable days 
– 
St George’s Day, St David’s Day, St Patrick’s Day, St Andrew’s Day, 
Burns Night, Valentine’s Night, Halloween, all bank holidays, Maundy 
Thursday, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, Boxing Day, 27th 28th 29th 
30th December, Bonfire Night and New Year’s Day. 
An additional hour to the standard and non-standard timings on the day 
when British Summer Time commences. 
New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 
 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
Monday to Sunday 2300 hours to 0230 hours 
 
An additional hour to the terminal hour on the following notable days 
– 
St George’s Day, St David’s Day, St Patrick’s Day, St Andrew’s Day, 
Burns Night, Valentine’s Night, Halloween, all bank holidays, Maundy 
Thursday, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, Boxing Day, 27th 28th 29th 
30th December, Bonfire Night and New Year’s Day. 
An additional hour to the standard and non-standard timings on the day 
when British Summer Time commences. 
New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 
 
 
Supply of Alcohol 
Monday to Sunday 09:00 hours to 02:00 hours 
 
An additional hour to the terminal hour on the following notable days 
– 
St George’s Day, St David’s Day, St Patrick’s Day, St Andrew’s Day, 
Burns Night, Valentine’s Night, Halloween, all bank holidays, Maundy 
Thursday, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, Boxing Day, 27th 28th 29th 
30th December, Bonfire Night and New Year’s Day. 
An additional hour to the standard and non-standard timings on the day 
when British Summer Time commences. 
New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 
 
 
The opening hours of the premises 
 
Monday to Sunday 0700 hours to 0230 hours 
 
An additional hour to the terminal hour on the following notable days 
– 

Page 48



St George’s Day, St David’s Day, St Patrick’s Day, St Andrew’s Day, 
Burns Night, Valentine’s Night, Halloween, all bank holidays, Maundy 
Thursday, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, Boxing Day, 27th 28th 29th 
30th December, Bonfire Night and New Year’s Day. 
An additional hour to the standard and non-standard timings on the day 
when British Summer Time commences. 
New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 
 

 
  

Page 49



 
 
11. Level 256, 7-8 Caer Street, Swansea  
 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
 
Playback of Recorded Music 
Late Night Refreshment 
Supply of Alcohol 
 

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
 
Playback of Recorded Music 
Wednesday - Thursday 
1600 - 0000 
 
Friday - Saturday 
1200 - 0100 
 
Sunday 
1200 - 0000 
 
Late Night Refreshment 
Wednesday - Thursday 
2300 - 0000 
 
Friday - Saturday 
2300 - 0100 
 
Sunday 
2300 - 0000 
 
 
Supply of Alcohol 
Wednesday - Thursday 
1600 - 2330 
 
Friday - Saturday 
1200 - 0100 
 
Sunday 
1200 - 2330 
 
 
The opening hours of the premises 
 
Wednesday - Thursday 
1600 - 0000 
 
Friday - Saturday 
1200 - 0200 
 
Sunday 
1200 - 0000 

Page 50



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



Appendix C 

Conditions which are consistent with the Operating Schedule 

1. CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing 
pictures of evidential quality in all lighting conditions particularly facial recognition. 
Cameras shall encompass all ingress and egress to the premises, fire exits all areas 
where the public have access and any external drinking areas. Equipment must be 
maintained in good working order, the system must continually record whilst the 
premises is open for licensable activities and during all times when customers 
remain at the premises. Recordings must  be correctly timed and date stamped , 
recordings must be kept in date order, numbered sequentially and kept for a period 
of 31 days and handed to a Police Officer/Local Authority Officer on demand. The 
Premises Licence Holder must ensure that at all times a Designated Premises 
Supervisor (DPS) or appointed member of staff is capable and competent at 
downloading CCTV footage in a recordable format either disc or VHS to a Police 
Officer/Local Authority Officer on demand. The Recording equipment and 
tapes/discs shall be kept in a secure environment under the control of the DPS or 
other responsible named individual. An operational daily log report must be 
maintained, endorsed by signature, indicating the system has been checked and is 

compliant. In the event of any failings the actions taken are to be recorded. In the 
event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment, the Premises Licence holder/DPS 
must report the failure to the Police/Local Authority. 

 

2. Suitable non glass receptacles only to be used at premises on days considered to 
be major event days in the area. Such days to be notified to designated premises 
supervisor in writing at least 14 days prior to event, or with agreement of Pub and 
Club Watch. 

 

3.  A minimum of 2 SIA licensed door supervisors shall be on duty at the premises 
from 22:00, until close, on Fridays and Saturdays and Sunday's that precede a bank 
holiday Monday or other statutory bank holiday, along with days considered to be 
major event days. 

 

4. There shall be a personal licence holder on duty at all times when the premises 
are authorised to sell alcohol. 

 

5. A register of door supervisors (Safer Swansea Partnership Register or like 
detailed bound numerical register) to be maintained at all times at the premises. 
Such register to include the name, registration number, contact details of the 
member of door staff along with the date, time on duty and time off duty. Full details 
of the agency supplying the staff to be endorsed and the register to be available for 
inspection on request by an Authorised officer. 

Page 52



 

6. Signs to be prominently displayed at the entrance to the premises, within the toilet 
facilities and at key strategic points within public access areas. Signs to state that 
drug use is unacceptable and that the venue operates a drug search policy as a 
condition of entry reserving the right to search customers under this provision. 

 

7. Premises to actively participate in regular initiatives to target drug misuse at the 
venue to include full co-operation with South Wales Police led drug itemiser and drug 
search operations. 

 

8. Managers/supervisors of premises to attend and fully participate In the City Centre 
Pub and Club Watch scheme. 

 

9. Premises to actively participate in the city centre Nitenet radio communication 
scheme. Participation to specifically include a member of staff responsible for signing 
on the system, monitoring, responding to transmissions, making transmissions when 
incidents arise to alert other premises using the system and signing off. This 
participation to take place at all times the premises is open to customers and trading. 

 

10. An incident recording book, bound in numerical order, shall be maintained at the 
premises showing details of the date and time of all assaults, injuries, accidents or 
ejections, as well as details of the members of staff involved, the nature of the 
incident and the action/outcome. The book must be kept available for inspection by 
the Police and authorised officers of the Licensing Authority. 

 

11. There shall be no outside drinking at the premises other than by customers using 
an area covered by a pavement cafe licence. All such areas to utilise non glass 
receptacles only. 

 

12. The premises shall have an adequate system of counting persons in and out to 
ensure that the customer levels in all areas do not exceed the limit endorsed in the 
venue risk assessment. 

 

13. The licence holder shall ensure that any queue to enter the premises which 
forms outside the premises is orderly and supervised by door staff so as to ensure 
that there is no public nuisance or obstruction to the public highway. 

 

Page 53



14. No rubbish, including bottles, shall be moved, removed, or placed in outside 
areas between 2300 hours and 0800 hours. 

 

15. A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme, shall be operated at the premises where 
the only acceptable forms of identification shall bear their photograph, date of birth 
and a holographic mark. 

 

16. A log shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The log should include 
the date and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of staff who 
refused the sale. The log shall be available for inspection at the premises by the 
police or an 

authorised officer of the Council at all times whilst the premises are open. 

 

17. The premises to keep up to date records of staff training and refresher training in 
respect of age-related sales including proxy sales to persons who are drunk and 
identifying and preventing drug 

misuse in written or electronic format available for inspection on request by an 
authorised officer. 

 

18. Notices shall be clearly displayed in the premises to emphasis to customers the 
prohibition on providing sales of alcohol to persons under the age of eighteen years. 

 

19. Live band performance to be at basement level only.  

  

20. Double door entry system to be constructed; and then maintained to prevent 
nuisance from amplified music at the venue. 

 

 

 

Page 54



Appendix D 

 

 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                 DIRECTORATE OF PLACE 
                                                                                 Civic Centre, Oystermouth Road,  
                                                                                 Swansea, SA1 3SN 
                                                                                        www.swansea.gov.uk 
                                                                                         
                                                                                        Please ask for:                    Licensing    
                                                                                         
                                                                                        E-mail:  evh.licensing@Swansea.gov.uk 
Lindsey Stock 
The Licensing Section 
The Guildhall 
Swansea 
SA1 4PE 
 
 

Date: 7th March 2024 
 
Dear Ms Stock,  
 
Licensing Act 2003 – New Premises Licence Application, Main Stage, 36 Castle 
Street, Swansea, SA1 1HZ. 
 
The Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority makes the following 
representation to the grant of the above-mentioned premises licence. 
 
The premises is described as a coffee shop and meeting place for the LGBTQ+ 
community during the day and a cabaret bar by night with little residential use in the 
area. The premises is in close proximity to Wind Street and is situated within the 
Cumulative Impact Assessment area adopted by the Council in July 2023, having 
first been introduced in 2013 (Referenced at 6.7 of the Statement of Licensing 
Policy).  
 
Cumulative impact is the potential impact on the promotion of the licensing 
objectives of a significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one area e.g. 
the potential impact on crime and disorder or public nuisance. 
 
As the premises is located within the Cumulative Impact Assessment area, it is felt 
by the Licensing Authority that the applicant has not provided sufficient information 
as to why the premises licence application should be granted nor has the applicant 
sufficiently demonstrated how the licensing objectives will be promoted. The 
Cumulative Impact Assessment states at paragraph 5.11 that should the applicant 
not be able to demonstrate that their operation will not add to the cumulative impact, 
a licence should be refused.  
 

Page 55

http://www.swansea.gov.uk/
mailto:evh.licensing@swansea.gov.uk


Appendix D 

 

The application proposes trading Monday to Sunday 1000 to 0130 with licensable 
activities terminating at 0100. Furthermore, the application proposes additional non-
standard timings for an additional hour on a Sunday prior to Bank Holiday Monday 
and an extension of hours to 0300 on New Years Eve. 
 
The applicant has stated within the description of the premises that there is little 
residential use in the area. This is not the case. There are residential units at 15-20 
Castle Street as well as residential units within Castle Arcade at 32 Castle Street. 
Whilst the applicant has stated SIA registered door staff will be employed at the 
premises and that the door staff will supervise queues to enter the premises, as per 
condition 5 and 13 of the operating schedule, the applicant makes no reference to 
how noise from the premises will be managed. The Licensing Authority, acting as 
Responsible Authority, would suggest additional conditions be considered should the 
licence be granted to ensure noise levels from the premises when regulated 
entertainment is taking place, will not become a public nuisance and therefore 
undermine the licensing objectives. 
 
Should the committee be minded to grant the application, the Licensing Authority 
acting as Responsible Authority suggests the following conditions:  
 
All windows and doors to be kept closed whilst regulated entertainment takes place 
and any use of the P.A system is in use.  
 
Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premises 
building. 
 
Notices shall be prominently displayed at the exit and any area used for smoking 
requesting patrons to respect the needs of local residents and to use and leave the 
area quietly. 
 
SIA door staff to actively monitor and control any queues outside of the premises in 
order to minimise any disturbance to local residents.  
 
The Licensing Authority has considered the application in line with paragraph 5.3 of 
the Cumulative Impact Assessment and whilst it proposes to sell alcohol and provide 
entertainment with different styles and characteristics in Swansea, the applicants 
have not demonstrated how the premises would not add to the existing cumulative 
impact.  
 
The Licensing Authority acting as Responsible Authority suggest the following 
conditions, should the licence be granted, in order to promote the licensing 
objectives: 
 
The premises will promote a QR code table service system. 
 
Where customers are unable to use the QR Code Ordering Service, waiter/waitress 
service will be provided. 
 
No service is to be provided directly to customers from the bar when regulated 
entertainment is taking place or when the P.A system is in use.  

Page 56



Appendix D 

 

 
I submit this as a representation on behalf of the Licensing Authority acting as a 
Responsible Authority under the Licensing Act 2003, as I consider that the applicant 
has not demonstrated how the premises will promote the licensing objectives and 
therefore, not add to the Cumulative Impact Assessment. 
 
Kind Regards 
 
Yvonne Lewis  
Team Leader - Licensing 
 
 

Page 57


	Agenda
	3 Gweithdrefn yr Is-bwyllgor Trwyddedu Statudol.
	4 Deddf Trwyddedu 2003 - Adran 17 - Cais am Drwydded Mangre - Main Stage, 36, Castle Street, Swansea, SA1 1HZ.
	Appendix A
	Appendix A1
	Appendix B
	Appendix B1
	Appendix C - Operating Schedule Conditions
	Appendix D


